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64B32-5.001 Disciplinary Guidelines.

(1) The Board may impose disciplinary penalties upon a determination that an applicant or licensee:

(a) Has violated any provision of Chapter 468, Part V, F.S., or any rules promulgated thereunder;

(b) Has violated any provision of Chapter 456, F.S., or any rules promulgated thereunder;

Section 456.0635, F.S., outlines specific offenses for which the Board is prohibited from issuing or renewing a license, certificate, or registration to any applicant if the candidate has been convicted of, pled nolo contendere, or guilty to, regardless of adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, Chapter 817, Chapter 893, 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970, or 42 U.S.C. ss 1395-1396, unless the sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or pleas ended more than 15 years prior to the date of the application.

(c) Has committed an act defined as “unprofessional conduct” in this rule chapter; or

(d) Has violated the Code of Ethics set forth in this rule chapter.

(2) The range of disciplinary penalties which the Board may impose includes any and all set forth in Section 456.072, F.S., unless the conduct to be disciplined falls within the purview of Section 456.0635, F.S., in which case the Board shall impose the penalty specified in Section 456.0635, F.S. In determining the appropriate disciplinary action to be imposed in each case, the Board shall take into consideration the following factors:

(a) The danger to the public;

(b) The length of time since the date of the violation;

(c) The number of previous disciplinary cases filed against the applicant or licensee;

(d) The length of time the applicant or licensee has practiced;

(e) The actual damage, physical or otherwise, to the patient;

(f) The deterrent effect of the penalty imposed;

(g) The effect of the penalty upon the applicant’s or licensee’s livelihood;

(h) Any efforts for rehabilitation;

(i) Any other mitigating or aggravating circumstances.

(3) Violations and Range of Penalties. In imposing discipline upon applicants and licensees, in proceedings pursuant to Sections 120.57(1) and (2), F.S., the Board shall act in accordance with the following disciplinary guidelines and shall impose a penalty within the range corresponding to the severity and repetition of the violations as set forth below. The mitigating or aggravating circumstances used to justify any deviation from the specified guidelines must be enunciated in the final order. The verbal identification of offenses are descriptive only; the full language of each statutory provision cited must be consulted in order to determine the conduct included. For applicants, any and all offenses listed herein are sufficient for refusal to certify an application for licensure. In addition to the penalty imposed, the Board shall recover the costs of the investigation and prosecution of the case. Additionally, if the Board makes a finding of pecuniary benefit or self-gain related to the violation, then the Board shall require refund of fees billed and collected from the patient or a third party on behalf of the patient.

	VIOLATION
	
	RECOMMENDED RANGE OF PENALTY

	(a) Attempting to obtain
	First Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to revocation and

	a license by bribery,
	
	payment of a fine of $250 to $1,000.

	fraud or through an error 
	Second Offense
	From revocation with ability to reapply and a fine from 

	of the Department
	
	$2,000 to $6,000.

	or the Board.
	Third Offense
	From revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from 

	(Sections 468.365(1)(a),
456.072(1)(h), F.S.)
	
	$6,000 to $10,000.


However, if the violation is not through an error but is for fraud or making a false or fraudulent representation, the fine is increased to $10,000 per count or offense.

	(b) Actions taken against
	First Offense
	From imposition of discipline comparable

	license by another jurisdiction.
	
	to the discipline which would have been

	(Sections 468.365(1)(b), 
456.072(l)(f), F.S.)
	
	imposed if the substantive violation occurred

	
	
	in Florida to suspension of the license

	
	
	until the license is unencumbered in the jurisdiction

	
	
	in which disciplinary action was originally taken,

	
	
	and an administrative fine ranging from $300 to

	
	
	$1,000. Impaired practitioners working in this state

	
	
	may be ordered into the PRN.

	
	Second Offense
	Same as for a first offense except a fine shall range 

	
	
	from $1,000 to $2,000.

	
	Third Offense
	Same minimum as for a first offense with a maximum 

	
	
	penalty of revocation and a fine from $2,000 to $10,000.

	(c) Guilt of crime
	First Offense
	From a minimum of six months probation

	directly relating to
	
	with conditions to revocation of the

	practice or ability to
	
	license and an administrative fine ranging

	practice.
	
	from $300 to $1,000. Any Board

	(Sections 468.365(1)(c), 
456.072(1)(c), F.S.)
	
	ordered probation shall be for no less time than

	
	
	Court ordered sanctions.

	
	Second Offense
	From one year suspension and $5,000 fine to revocation

	
	
	and fine of $10,000.

	(d) Willfully failing to file a report 
	First Offense
	From six months to one year probation with conditions,

	as required. 
(Sections 468.365(1)(d),
	
	and an administrative fine from $300 to $1,000.

	456.072(1)(l), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to six months 

	 
	
	suspension and a fine from $500 to $3,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension to revocation and a fine from

	
	
	$3,000 to $10,000.


However, if the offense is for fraud or for willfully making a false or fraudulent report, the fine is increased to $10,000 per count or offense.

	(e) False, deceptive, or
	First Offense
	From reprimand to one year suspension,

	misleading advertising.
	
	and an administrative fine from $250 to $1,000.

	(Section 468.365(1)(e), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to one year

	
	
	suspension and a fine from $500 to $3,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension to revocation and a fine from

	
	
	$3,000 to $10,000.

	(f) Unprofessional conduct.
	First Offense
	From a minimum of one year probation

	(Section 468.365(1)(f), F.S.)
	
	with conditions to revocation, and an

	
	
	administrative fine from $300 to $2,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From one year suspension to revocation and a fine from

	
	
	$2,000 to $10,000.

	(g) Controlled substances.
	First Offense
	From a minimum of six months probation

	(Section 468.365(1)(g), F.S.)
	
	with conditions to revocation of the license

	
	
	and an administrative fine ranging from $1,000 to $5,000.

	
	
	Any Board ordered probation shall be for no less time

	
	
	than Court ordered sanctions.

	
	Second Offense
	From one year suspension to revocation and a fine from

	
	
	$5,000 to $10,000.

	(h) Failure to report another
licensee in violation.
	First Offense
	From a letter of concern to six months probation with conditions, and an administrative fine from $300 to $1,000.

	(Sections 468.365(1)(h), 
456.072(1)(i), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From six months probation with conditions to one year

	
	
	suspension and a fine from $500 to $3,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension to revocation and a fine from

	
	
	$3,000 to $10,000.

	(i) Violation of order of
	First Offense
	From a reprimand to six months suspension,

	the Board or Department or
	
	and an administrative fine from $300 to

	failure to comply with subpoena.
	
	$1,000. For failure to comply with

	(Sections 468.365(1)(i), 

456.072(1)(q), F.S.)
	
	subpoena, $250 minimum fine and ninety day

	
	
	suspension and thereafter until compliance.

	
	Second Offense
	From one year suspension to revocation and a fine from

	
	
	$2,000 to $10,000.

	(j) Unlicensed practice.
	First Offense
	A reprimand to six months suspension followed by

	(Section 468.365(1)(j), F.S.)
	
	one year, and probation with conditions, and

	
	
	an administrative fine from $500 to $1,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From six months suspension to revocation and a fine from

	
	
	$2,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	Revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from 

	
	
	$5,000 to $10,000.

	(k) Aiding unlicensed practice.
	First Offense
	From a minimum of one year probation with conditions to 

	(Sections 468.365(1)(k), 
456.072(1)(j), F.S.)
	
	six months suspension followed by one year of probation with conditions, and an administrative fine from $500 to $3,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From six months suspension followed by one year of

	
	
	probation with conditions to revocation and a fine from

	
	
	$2,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension followed by two years probation

	
	
	with conditions to revocation with no ability to reapply

	
	
	and a fine from $6,000 to $10,000.

	(l) Failure to perform legal
	First Offense
	From a reprimand to revocation, and an administrative fine

	obligation.
(Sections 468.365(1)(l), 
	
	from $300 to $1,000.

	456.072(1)(k), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to six months

	
	
	suspension and a fine from $500 to $5,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension to revocation with no ability to

	
	
	reapply and a fine from $3,000 to $10,000.

	(m) Practicing beyond

competence level.
	First Offense
	From reprimand to one year suspension followed by two years probation and an administrative fine from $300 to

	(Sections 468.365(1)(m), 
	
	$2,000.

	456.072(1)(o), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From six months suspension followed by one year probation with conditions to revocation and a fine from $1,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension followed by two years probation to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from

	
	
	$3,000 to $10,000.

	(n) Delegation of professional
responsibilities to unqualified 
person. 
(Sections 468.365(1)(n), 
456.072(1)(p), F.S.)
	First Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to revocation, and an administrative fine from $300 to $1,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From six months suspension followed by one year of probation with conditions to revocation and a fine from $1,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension followed by two years probation to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from

	
	
	$3,000 to $10,000

	(o) Malpractice.

(Section 468.365(1)(o), F.S.)
	First Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to revocation, and an administrative fine from $500 to $2,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From two years probation with conditions to revocation

	
	
	and a fine from $2,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension followed by two years probation to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from

	
	
	$3,000 to $10,000.

	(p) Kickbacks or split 

fee arrangements.

(Section 468.365(1)(p), F.S.)
	First Offense
	From refund of fees billed and six months suspension followed by at least one year probation with conditions to revocation, and administrative fine from $300 to $3,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From one year suspension followed by two years probation with conditions to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from $2,000 to $10,000.

	(q) Exercising influence or

engage patient in sex.

(Sections 468.365(1)(q), 
456.072(1)(u) F.S.)
	First Offense
	From one year suspension followed by at least one year probation with conditions and possible referral to the PRN to revocation, and an administrative fine from $500 to $2,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From one year suspension followed by at least one year

	
	
	probation with conditions to revocation with no ability to

	
	
	reapply and possible referral to PRN a fine from $1,000 to

	
	
	$10,000.

	(r) Deceptive, untrue, or 
fraudulent representations in 
the practice of respiratory care.
	First Offense
	From a minimum of one year probation with conditions to revocation, and an administrative fine from $10,000 per count or offense.

	(Sections 468.365(1)(r), 
456.072(1)(a), (m), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From two years of probation with conditions to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine of $10,000 per count or offense.

	(s) Improper solicitation of
	First Offense
	From a minimum of one year probation with conditions to 

	patients.
	
	revocation, and an administrative fine from $300 to $1,000.

	(Section 468.365(1)(s), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From two years probation with conditions to revocation and

	
	
	a fine from $2,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension followed by two years probation

	
	
	to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from

	
	
	$3,000 to $10,000.


However, if the violation is for fraud or soliciting patients by making a false or fraudulent representation, the fine is increased to $10,000 per count or offense.

	(t) Failure to keep written 
medical records.

(Section 468.365(1)(t), F.S.)
	First Offense
	From a letter of concern to one year suspension, followed by a minimum of one year probation with conditions and an administrative fine from $300 to $1,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From a reprimand to two years probation with conditions

	
	
	and a fine from $500 to $5,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From six months suspension followed by one year probation to revocation and a fine from $3,000 to $10,000.

	(u) Exercising influence on patient
for financial gain.

(Sections 468.365(1)(u), 456.072(1)(n), F.S.)
	First Offense
	From refund of fees billed and a minimum of one year probation with conditions, to two years suspension and an administrative fine from $500 to $3,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From refund of fees billed and two years probation with

	
	
	conditions to revocation and a fine from $2,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From refund of fees billed and one year suspension followed by two years probation to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from $3,000 to $10,000.

	(v) Performing professional
	First Offense
	From a reprimand to one year suspension, followed by

	services not authorized by
	
	a minimum of one year probation with conditions and an

	physician.
	
	administrative fine from $300 to $1,000.

	(Section 468.365(1)(v), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From six months probation with conditions to revocation

	
	
	and a fine from $1,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From six months suspension followed by one year probation to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from $3,000 to $10,000.

	(w) Inability to practice
	First Offense
	From referral to PRN for submission to a mental or physical

	respiratory care with
	
	examination directed towards the problem and/or

	skill and safety.
	
	one year probation with conditions, to revocation 

	(Sections 468.365(1)(w), 
456.072(1)(y), (z), F.S.)
	
	and an administrative fine from $100 to $1,000.

	
	Second Offense 
	From referral to PRN and/or two years of probation with

	
	
	conditions to revocation and a fine from $300 to $5,000.

	(x) Violation of this chapter,
	First Offense
	From a reprimand to revocation and a fine from $300 to

	Chapter 456, F.S., or any rules 
adopted pursuant thereto.
	
	$2,000.

	(Sections 468.365(1)(x),
	Second Offense
	From six months of probation with conditions to revocation

	456.072(1)(b), (cc), (dd), F.S.)
	
	and a fine from $1,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year of probation with conditions to revocation

	
	
	and a fine from $2,000 to $10,000.

	(y) Improper interference with
	First Offense
	From six months of probation with conditions to revocation

	investigation, inspection or
	
	and a fine from $500 to $5,000.

	discipline. 
	Second Offense
	From six months suspension followed by one year 

	(Section 456.072(1)(r), F.S.)
	
	probation with conditions to revocation with no ability to

	
	
	reapply and a fine from $1,000 to $10,000.

	(z) Failure to report conviction
	First Offense
	From reprimand to six months suspension and a fine from

	or plea.
	
	$300 to $1,000.

	(Section 456.072(1)(w), (x), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to revocation with 

	
	
	no ability to reapply and a fine from $1,000 to $10,000.

	(aa) Wrong patient, wrong site,
	First Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to revocation

	or wrong or unauthorized
	
	and a fine from $500 to $2,000.

	procedure. 

(Section 456.072(1)(aa), (bb), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From two years probation with conditions to revocation and a fine from $2,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension followed by two years probation to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from $3,000 to $10,000.

	(bb) Leaving a foreign body 

in a patient.
	First Offense
	From one year probation with conditions to revocation and a fine from $500 to $2,000.

	(Section 456.072(1)(bb), (cc), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	From two years probation with conditions to revocation and a fine from $2,000 to $10,000.

	
	Third Offense
	From one year suspension followed by two years probation to revocation with no ability to reapply and a fine from $3,000 to $10,000.

	(cc) Testing positive in a 

pre-employer ordered drug screen. 

(Section 456.072(1)(z), (aa), F.S.)
	First Offense
	From six months probation with referral to PRN to revocation employment condition and/or and a fine from $500 to $2,000.

	
	Second Offense
	From one year probation with conditions and referral to PRN to revocation and an administrative fine from $1,000 to $10,000.


(dd) Termination of PRN Contract – Reprimand to revocation, plus an administrative fine from $250 to $2,000.

(ee) Practicing with a delinquent, retired, or inactive status license – Reprimand to revocation, plus an administrative fine from $2,000 to $10,000. If fraud is shown, $10,000 fine per count. 

	(ff) Failure to notify a patient
	First Offense
	Read laws and rules and submit an affidavit attesting that the 

	through written or oral notice of 
	
	licensee has read the laws and rules.

	the type of license the practitioner
	
	

	holds. 

(Section 456.072(1)(t), F.S.)
	Second Offense
	A fine from $100.00 to $500.00.

	(gg) Any felony offense classified

under Chapter 409, 817, 893, F.S., or

21 U.S.C ss. 801-970, or 42 U.S.C.

ss. 1395-1396. 

(Section 456.0635, F.S.)
	Any Offense


	The board is prohibited from issuing or renewing a license, 

certificate, or registration, unless the sentence and any subsequent 

period of probation for such conviction or pleas ended more than 

15 years prior to the date of the application.

	(hh) Terminated for cause from the 

Florida Medicaid program pursuant 

to Section 409.913, F.S.
	Any Offense
	The board is prohibited from issuing or renewing a license, 

certificate, or registration, unless the applicant has been in good 

standing with the Florida Medicaid program for the most recent 5 

years.

	(ii) Terminated for cause, pursuant to 

the appeals procedures established by 

the state or Federal Government, 

from any other state Medicaid 

program or the Federal Medicare 

program.
	Any Offense
	The board is prohibited from issuing or renewing a license,

certificate, or registration, unless the applicant has been in good 

standing with a state Medicaid program or the Federal Medicare 

program for the most recent 5 years and the termination occurred 

at least 20 years prior to the date of the application.


(4) Stipulation or Settlements. The provisions of this rule are not intended and shall not be construed to limit the ability of the Board to dispose informally of disciplinary actions by stipulation, agreed settlement, or consent order pursuant to Section 120.57(4), F.S.

(5) Letters of Guidance. The provisions of this rule cannot and shall not be construed to limit the authority of the probable cause panel of the Board to direct the Department to send a letter of guidance pursuant to Section 456.073(4), F.S., in any case for which it finds such action appropriate.

(6) Other Action. The provisions of this rule are not intended to and shall not be construed to limit the ability of the Board to pursue or recommend that the Department pursue collateral civil or criminal actions when appropriate.

Rulemaking Authority 456.079, 468.365(4) FS. Law Implemented 456.072, 468.365 FS. History–New 4-29-85, Formerly 21M-37.01, 21M-37.001, Amended 1-3-94, Formerly 61F6-37.001, 59R-74.001, 64B8-74.001, Amended 5-5-02, 12-5-04, 5-15-05, 2-23-06, 3-29-07, 5-4-10.

64B32-5.002 Payment of Fine.

All fines imposed by the Board shall be paid within thirty (30) days from the date of the final order entered by the Board unless the final order extends the deadline in any given case.

Rulemaking Authority 456.072(4), 468.365(4) FS. Law Implemented 456.072(4), 468.365(2)(c) FS. History–New 6-9-99, Formerly 64B8-74.005.

64B32-5.003 Unprofessional Conduct; Acceptable Standards Definition.

(1) A licensee is guilty of unprofessional conduct, which is defined as any departure from, or failure to conform to, acceptable standards related to the delivery of respiratory care services. Some examples of unprofessional conduct shall include the following acts:

(a) Violating the confidentiality of information or knowledge concerning a patient.

(b) Falsely misrepresenting the facts on an application for employment as a respiratory therapist.

(c) Leaving a respiratory therapy assignment before properly advising appropriate supervisory personnel.

(d) Providing false or incorrect information to an employer regarding the status of the certification, registration, or licensure.

(e) Failing to report another licensee in violation of the laws and/or rules pertaining to the profession.

(f) Using foul or abusive language in patient care or public areas.

(2) Acceptable standards means practicing respiratory care with the level of care, skill, and treatment which is recognized by a reasonably prudent respiratory therapist as being acceptable under similar conditions and circumstances.

Rulemaking Authority 468.353(1), 468.365(1)(f) FS. Law Implemented 468.365(1)(f) FS. History–New 4-29-85, Formerly 21M-37.02, 21M-37.002, 61F6-37.002, 59R-74.002, 64B8-74.002, Amended 1-6-02, 12-26-05.

64B32-5.004 Code of Ethics.

Rulemaking Authority 468.354(5) FS. Law Implemented 468.354(5)(a) FS. History–New 4-29-85, Formerly 21M-37.03, 21M-37.003, 61F6-37.003, 59R-74.003, 64B8-74.003, Repealed 1-31-17.

64B32-5.005 HIV/AIDS: Knowledge of Antibody Status, Action to Be Taken.

Rulemaking Authority 456.032 FS. Law Implemented 456.032, 468.365(1)(x) FS. History–New 11-9-92, Formerly 21M-37.004, 61F6-37.004, 59R-74.004, 64B8-74.004, Repealed 1-31-17.

64B32-5.006 Mediation.

(1) “Mediation” means a process whereby a mediator appointed by the Department acts to encourage and facilitate resolution of a legally sufficient complaint. It is an informal and nonadversarial process with the objective of assisting the parties to reach a mutually acceptable agreement. When an offense subject to mediation is also a citation violation, the mediator shall be informed regarding the citation penalty for the offense.

(2) For purposes of Section 456.078, F.S., the Board designates as being appropriate for mediation:

(a) First time violations of subsection 64B32-6.001(2), F.A.C., failure to respond to a continuing education audit.

(b) Failure to notify the Department of a change of address as required by Rule 64B32-1.006, F.A.C., if there is a dispute and the Respondent did not timely respond to a notice of noncompliance.

(c) Issuance of a bad check to the Department under Section 468.365(1)(l), F.S., if there is a dispute and the Respondent did not timely respond to a notice of noncompliance.

(d) Violation of continuing education requirements under Section 468.361, F.S.

(e) Unprofessional conduct violations under Rule 64B32-5.003, F.A.C.

(f) Exercising influence on a patient to exploit the patient for financial gain under Section 468.365(1)(u), F.S.

(g) Failure to pay required fees and/or fines in a timely matter if disputed under Section 468.365(1)(i), F.S.

Rulemaking Authority 456.078 FS. Law Implemented 456.078 FS. History–New 3-21-95, Formerly 59R-74.005, 64B8-74.005, Amended 5-31-04.

64B32-5.007 Citations.

(1) Pursuant to Section 456.077, F.S., the Board sets forth below those violations for which there is no substantial threat to the public health, safety, and welfare; or, if there is a substantial threat to the public health, safety, and welfare, such potential for harm has been removed prior to the issuance of the citation. Next to each violation is the penalty to be imposed. All citations will include a requirement that the subject correct the violation, if remediable, within a specified period of time not to exceed 90 days, and impose whatever obligations will remedy the offense, except documentation of completion of continuing education requirements shall be as specified in paragraph (2)(a). If the violation is not corrected, or is disputed, the Department shall follow the procedure set forth in Section 456.073, F.S. In addition to any administrative fine imposed, the Respondent shall be required by the Department to pay the costs of investigation. The form to be used is specified in the rules of the Department of Health.

(2) The following violations may be disposed of by citation with the specified penalty:

(a) Violations of continuing education requirements required by Section 468.361, F.S.: are to be completed within 90 days of the date of the filing of the final order. Licensee must submit certified documentation of completion of all the CE requirements for the period for which the citation was issued; prior to renewing the license for the next biennium, licensee must document compliance with the CE requirements for the relevant period. 

1. Failure to document HIV/AIDS continuing education requirement the fine shall be $100.

2. Documentation of some but not all of the 24 hours of continuing education for license renewal the fine shall be $50 for each hour not documented.

(b) Violation of any portion of Rule 64B32-5.003, F.A.C., for unprofessional conduct the fine shall be $300.

(c) Failure to notify the Board of current address as required by Rule 64B32-1.006, F.A.C. the fine shall be $50.

(d) Failure to keep written respiratory care records justifying the reason for the action taken on only one patient under Section 468.365(1)(t), F.S. the fine shall be $100.

(e) Circulating misleading advertising in violation of Section 468.365(1)(e), F.S., the fine shall be $500.

(f) Exercising influence on a patient to exploit the patient for financial gain by promoting or selling services, goods, appliances or drugs under Section 468.365(1)(u), F.S. the fine shall be $1,000.

(g) Failure to submit compliance documentation after receipt of the continuing education audit notification under Section 468.365(1)(x), F.S. the fine shall be $150.

(h) Failure to provide satisfaction including the costs incurred following receipt of the Department’s notification of a check dishonored for insufficient funds under Section 468.365(1)(l), F.S. the fine shall be $150.

(i) Failure to pay required fees and/or fines in a timely manner under Section 468.365(1)(i), F.S. the fine shall be $150.

(3) When an initial violation for which a citation could be issued occurs in conjunction with a violation or other violations for which a citation could not be issued, the procedures of Section 456.073, F.S., shall apply.

(4) The licensee has 90 days from the date the citation becomes a final order to pay any fine imposed and costs. All fines and costs are to be made payable to the Department of Health, and sent to the Department in Tallahassee. A copy of the citation shall accompany the payment of the fine and costs.

(5) The Department of Health shall periodically, submit a report to the Board regarding the number and nature of the citations issued, the penalties imposed, and the level of compliance.

Rulemaking Authority, 456.072(3), 456.077 FS. Law Implemented 456.072(3), 456.077 FS. History–New 5-19-96, Formerly 59R-74.006, 64B8-74.006, Amended 1-6-02, 5-31-04, 2-23-06, 3-28-10, 9-15-10.
64B32-5.008 Notice of Noncompliance.

In accordance with Sections 120.695 and 456.073, F.S., the Board shall issue a notice of noncompliance as a first response to a minor violation of a rule. Failure of a licensee to take action to correct the violation within 15 days shall result in either the issuance of a citation when appropriate or the initiation of regular disciplinary proceedings. The minor violations which shall result in a notice of noncompliance are:

(1) Failure to notify of a change of address within 60 days as required by Rule 64B32-1.006, F.A.C.

(2) Non - intentional issuance of a bad check to the Department under Section 486.365(1)(x), F.S.

Rulemaking Authority 120.695, 456.073(3), 468.365(1)(x) FS. Law Implemented 120.695, 456.073(3) FS. History–New 5-31-04.
